
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      
   9 October 2012 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 17 October 2012 
beginning at 

11:30 am 
in 

Room 4B, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillors Craig and Cross 
 County Councillors Broadhurst, Davidovitz and Kyrle 
 Mr Jackson & Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick 
 Diccon Bright, Area Co-ordinator  
 Tom de Witt, County Arts and Museums Service  
 Janet Owen, County Arts and Museums Service  
 Sue Wright, County Arts and Museums Service 
  
  
 
 Staff Contact: Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8133;  
Email: julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
4. Schools Service Review    (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

5. Budgets 2012/13 and Initial Proposal for 2013/14    (Pages 17 - 18) 
 
6. Redevelopment Project at Bursledon Windmill    (Pages 19 - 26) 
 
7. A New Trust for Arts, Museums and Heritage in the Hampshire-Solent Area  

(Pages 27 - 32) 
 
8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 16 May 2012  (10:00 am – 11:30 am) 
 

The meeting was held at Bursledon Windmill 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillor Cross  
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors A Broadhurst and 
Davidovitz  
 
Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillors Mrs Andrewes and 
McCormick (until 10.45 am) 
 

 James Brigden - County  Arts & Museums Service
 Tom de Witt - County Arts and Museums Service
 Sue Wright - County Arts and Museums Service
 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust  
 Diccon Bright - Local Area Co-ordinator 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Craig, County 
Councillor Kyrle, Mr Jackson (Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust) and 
Janet Owen (County Arts and Museums Service) 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED –  

 
That Councillor Cross be appointed Chairman of the Committee for the year 
2012-13. 

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED –  

 
That County Councillor Broadhurst be appointed Vice-Chairman of the 
Committee for the year 2012-13. 
 
County Councillor Broadhurst chaired the meeting on this occasion. 

 
3. MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2011 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2

1



4. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Curator introduced a report which provided an update on activities and 

events at the Windmill since the beginning of 2012. 
 
Phase 1 of the Arts and Museums Review had been implemented in July 
2011.  New staff and volunteers had been introduced at the Windmill and a 
Community Partnership had been launched to engage the local community 
more widely in the future operational working of the site.  The Area Curator 
thanked the Visitor Services Assistant and his team for their hard work and 
enthusiasm and for their work with the Learning and Community 
Engagement (LCE) Team. 
 
The Windmill had continued to open on Sundays, with opening for other 
events and booked groups by appointment throughout the year.  New 
interpretation had been introduced during March 2012, including a new 
introductory audio visual display and a 360 virtual degree tour of the 
Windmill, researched by the Collections Team, to enable all visitors, 
including those with limited mobility, to see the inner workings of the mill.  
The film would also be used as a training tool for familiarisation with the 
working of the Windmill. 
 
Towards the end of 2011, it had been established that the windshaft 
required replacement and consequently the staff could not continue to mill 
until the work had been undertaken.  This had resulted in some restricted 
access to the Windmill, but the ongoing development of the volunteer 
programme had helped to offset the limited operational working.  
Attendance figures had dropped slightly when the Windmill had stopped 
operating but provided a stable base on which to build following the 
replacement of the windshaft. 
 
The first stage of the replacement had commenced in March with the 
removal of the sails.  This had removed any risks and enabled a more 
detailed assessment of the remainder of the work.  The opportunity would 
also be taken to explore and interpret the technical aspects of the Windmill 
as a machine and also to carry out any exterior redecoration and repair work 
required.  It was anticipated that, subject to funding being secured, the 
repairs would be completed in time for the Windmill’s 200th anniversary in 
2014. 
 
In the nine months since the new Learning and Community Engagement 
Team had taken up their posts, they had worked with 135 children in five 
school groups and developed new sessions reflecting changes to the 
National Curriculum.  Excellent feedback had been received to these 
sessions, and also to the programme of activities and events offered over 
the period January to March 2012.   A total of 213 adults and children had 
taken part in these events. 
 
The LCE Team had facilitated 20 events since July 2011, the most 
innovative of which had been The Mill by Torchlight, attended by 124 

2



people, and the Pilands Mini Museum Project. 
 
Promotional booklets for Museums and Archives continued to be distributed 
and over 30,000 subscribers now received the monthly e-newsletter, 
Showcase.   
 
On 27 March 2012 the Windmill had been the subject of a five minute slot 
on Meridian Tonight, which featured the sails being removed by crane and a 
live interview with the Area Curator. Local newspapers had also given 
considerable coverage of the first stage of the restoration work.  It was also 
reported that an article had been included in Bursledon Parish Council’s 
newsletter.  
 
In response to a query, it was confirmed that joint working and collaboration 
was taking place with both Bursledon Brickworks and Manor Farm. 
 
On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman thanked the Area Curator for a 
very informative report. 
 
It was AGREED –  
 
That the report be noted. 

 
5. BURSLEDON WINDMILL OUTLINE CONSERVATION STATEMENT 
 
 The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Giles Pritchard, Specialist 

Conservation Architect, from Hampshire County Council Property Services. 
 
Giles firstly reported that a survey of the windshaft had been carried out and 
a detailed record of the findings made, which was illustrated in a number of 
photographs shown to the Committee.  Decay approximately 600m square 
had been found in the projecting end section of the windshaft.  Moisture had 
entered wood through the natural shakes found in oak, and decay had set in 
from the middle of the section. The iron brackets on the shaft had also 
trapped moisture.  A safety plan had been put in place and the sails had 
been craned off the Windmill at the end of March.  This had stabilised the 
condition of the Windmill and significantly reduced risk until the eventual 
removal and replacement of the windshaft.   
 
Giles then introduced a draft Outline Conservation Statement for Bursledon 
Windmill, prepared by the Historic Buildings Group in Hampshire County 
Council Property Services on behalf of the County Council’s Arts and 
Museum Service. 
 
The Statement focused on understanding the significance of the Windmill 
and considering how best to approach the on-going conservation, use and 
management of the site with a view to submitting a bid to the Heritage 
Lottery Fund for funding to replace the windshaft and undertake other 
restoration work, set within an operational framework. 
    

3



The Statement set out the heritage, history, management arrangements and 
historic significance of the Windmill.  The vision for the Windmill drawn up by 
the recently formed Community Partnership and the social and community 
value of the site was also provided, including the results of the Bursledon 
Parish Plan survey.  This had asked a number of questions of local 
residents regarding their view of the importance of the Windmill. 
 
A risk assessment, conservation and management aims, an action plan and 
funding proposals were also included in the Statement.  The estimated total 
project cost stood at £190,000.  Some funding had been confirmed and, 
once the bid to the Heritage Lottery Fund had been submitted, other 
potential funding sources would be explored.    
 
During the consideration of the Statement, a number of issues were raised, 
including: 
 
• Tree works to the adjacent woodland, which had grown and was 

blocking clear wind to the Windmill  – it was confirmed that the 
woodland was in private ownership, but managed by the Borough 
Council.  The woods were seen as part of the site and had been 
identified as a SINC.  Work to the trees had been undertaken but the 
effectiveness would not be known until the restoration work had been 
completed and the Windmill recommenced milling, when a review 
would be undertaken.  It was queried whether signage could be 
provided pointing visitors towards the magnificent view to be seen 
from the woods, which was currently difficult to find. The area Co-
ordinator agreed to investigate this issue.   

 
• The possibility of the windshaft being the only wooden one in the 

country – this would be investigated by County Council officers. 
 
• Public transport to the Windmill – it was pointed out that no bus 

service ran to the Windmill from either the railway station in 
Bursledon, or from Bitterne.  The Area Co-ordinator agreed to raise 
this with the Borough’s Cabinet Member for Transport and 
Streetscene, and also to investigate the possibility of providing 
posters advertising the Windmill at Bursledon Station.  

 
It was AGREED –  
 
That the Bursledon Windmill Outline Conservation Statement be noted. 

 
6. ARTS AND MUSEUMS STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
 The Strategic Manager for Community Engagement and Learning provided 

a verbal report on the Arts and Museums Service’s Strategic Plan. 
 
Phase Two of the Arts and Museums Strategic Review had been 
implemented with effect from 4 May 2012. 
 

4



For the Windmill, more significant changes had been implemented under 
Phase One of the Review and reported at previous meetings.  The 
Volunteer Co-ordinator role had continued through Renaissance transition 
funding for 2012/13, although it should be noted that this post had been 
reviewed to embrace an area role, with responsibility for the post holder for 
volunteer co-ordination at Westbury Manor Museum and Aldershot Military 
Museum, as well as the Windmill. 
 
Both the Visitor Service Assistant role and the Museum Assistant role had 
continued, but with a slight increase in hours for each, from .16fte to .2 fte. 
 
An updated Arts and Museums staff structure would be circulated to 
Borough Council officers in early June. 
 
The option for a Fully Integrated Merger proposal between Southampton, 
Winchester and Hampshire was being looked at in detail over the next six 
months, but no decision would be made until late 2012.  A business case 
specialist had been appointed to work with partners to test the proposals 
with representatives from the public and key external stakeholders.  Staff 
were engaged in this process through a number of workshops and 
workstreams, such as visitor services, exhibitions and community 
engagement and learning.  Unions would be engaged as appropriate.  
Funding partners would be engaged through County Council officer 
conversations during the summer.  A report would be provided at the next 
meeting of this Committee. 
 
It was AGREED -  
 
That the verbal report be noted.  

 
7. SERVICE PLAN 2012/2013 
 
 The Area Curator introduced the Service Plan 2012-2013 for the Windmill.  

The plan supported both the County and Borough Councils’ corporate 
priorities and the Arts and Museum Service’s objectives.   
 
The Plan comprised the following key areas: 
 
• Providing a welcoming and well maintained Windmill and site 
• Hosting special temporary exhibitions and related events 
• Caring for collections and providing specialist knowledge and advice 
• Inspiring learning and community engagement 
• Marketing and management. 
 
The Committee noted that Key Activity 1.2 (Develop public access to the 
Windmill through the development of a new sustainable community 
partnership model) was of particular importance, reflecting the work 
undertaken to set up the partnership and the need to realise the vision for 
the future of the site.  The partnership had expressed interest in developing 
a local temporary exhibition space for community groups at its meeting in 

5



November 2011 and this need was also contained within the Plan as Key 
Activity 2.1. 
 
It was AGREED –  
 
That the Service Plan 2012-2013 be noted. 

 
8. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was agreed that the next meeting would be held on 17 October 2012 at 

11.30 am at the Civic Offices.   
 
M4935 

6



 

 1

Curators Report – Bursledon Windmill 
Joint Management Committee Meeting – 17 October 2012 

(Covering period June – September 2012) 
 

1. Providing a welcoming and well maintained Windmill  
 
On 19 August, a significant 
milestone was reached for 
Bursledon Windmill. This 
was The  Bursledon Bake 
Off – the first time since the 
original restoration of the 
windmill that food actually 
prepared and cooked on the 
premises has been enjoyed 
by visitors to the site. This a 
major step which reinforces 
the link between the 
preserved buildings and 
their original purpose at the 
heart of the local community 
as an centre for agriculture 
and food production. 

 
 

The event was centred around the traditional, 
wood-fired Pizza oven which was built over 
several months by the team of volunteers under 
the supervision of James Brigden, Visitor 
Services Assistant at the site and Volunteer Co-
ordinator for South East Hampshire. 
 
The response from visitors to this event was 
incredibly positive – with comments such as “this 
is the best Pizza I have ever tasted”.  Visitors of 
all ages were able to 
make their own  
Pizza and take it to 
the oven for firing,  
before sitting in the 
beautiful grounds  
with a cold drink to 
enjoy their pizzas. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

7



 

 2

This event was made possible by the support and organisational skill of the Learning and 
Community Engagement Team, who prepared the ingredients and oversaw the safe 
preparation of food on site as well as helping promote and organise the event. It was a 
challenging activity, with facilities at the mill being so limited it was pushing the boundaries of 
what is possible at present. But the life that it brought to the site was astonishing and an 
indication of what could be possible. Most of all, it demonstrated a clear appetite from the 
community  to engage with the Windmill in this way. 
 
This theme of broadening the scope of activities at the Windmill will be continued by the 
forthcoming and spectacular event, “A Curious Christmas Circus”, on the evening of 6th 
December. This magical and fantastic event will feature live circus performers, storytellers 
and magical characters to lead the audience on a truly magical journey. This outdoor 
theatrical performance has been created and led by Annabel Cook, Area Manager for South 
East Hampshire, who brings great expertise and experience in the creative and performing 
arts which is essential in order to transform a challenging site such as this in this way. 
 
Alongside the ongoing restoration of the Windmill, which aims to return this iconic structure to 
full working order, this new way of interpreting the site has the potential to open up the site to  
new and diverse audiences and to inspire people in all sorts of ways above and beyond the 
central core of a working windmill. 

  
 

Visitor figures 11/12   
 

Although the visitor figures are lower than previous years, this is to be expected while the Mill 
is not working and the sails are removed. Despite this, there are some relatively good 
attendances at certain times and the strong events programme will place the Mill in a good 
position to return to strong numbers when repairs are completed after the planned restoration. 
 

 
 April May June July Aug Sept Oct. Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  

 
Total 

Bursledon  
2009 –2010 
 

520 509 192 425 720 390 425 242 214 237 264 396 4534 

Bursledon  
2010 –2011 
 

660 612 558 461 801 386 542 327 88 262 473 386 5556 

Bursledon 
2011–2012 
 

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866 

Bursledon 
2012 –2013 

385 285 227 251 332        1480 
to 

date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

 3

2. Caring for the Windmill, promoting access to collections and providing specialist  
 knowledge and advice 
 
2.1 Caring for the windmill 
 Throughout this period, the preparation work for the restoration funding bid has been 

progressing. Alongside this, Hampshire County Council historic buildings architects have 
been pursuing resources required by the planned restoration so that as and when funding 
becomes available, the restoration is in a position to commence. 

 
 Preparations are being made for a review of the collections and displays at the Windmill that 

will take place in October. The Collections Team will check on the condition of all objects and 
the environment in which they are displayed. All environmental controls will be reviewed. 

 
2.2  Promoting access and providing specialist knowledge and advice 
 Over the summer months, the Collections Team supported the delivery of the ‘Mini Beasts’ 

workshop for schools, the Victorian Day and Mill Summer Murders. Victorian ceramics were 
selected from the County Council’s extensive decorative arts collection to enhance the  
displays put together for the Victorian Day, having been professionally cleaned before being 
put on show to the public. 

 
 
3.      Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  
 
3.1    Formal Education Provision 
 Over the 6 month period April to September 2012, the Community Engagement and Learning 

Team (CEL) have worked with 9 school groups in the Windmill, a total of 244 pupils. 
 

Date School Key Stage & 
Year Group 

No. of 
children 

Type of workshop 

24 May  St Swithun Wells 
Catholic Primary 

KS1 Yr 2 28 Little Red Hen 

24 May St Swithun Wells 
Catholic Primary 

KS1 Yr 1 30 Little Red Hen 

24 May St Swithun Wells 
Catholic Primary 

KS1 Yr 1 29 Little Red Hen 

24 May St Swithun Wells 
Catholic Primary 

KS1 Yr R 29 Little Red Hen 

14 June Mill Hill Primary, 
Havant 

KS2 Yr 3&4 27 Flour Power 

19 June Mansel Park 
Primary, So’ton 

KS1 Yr 2 31 Minibeast Safari 

10 Sept Bursledon Infant KS1 Yr R 26 Little Red Hen 
 

10 Sept Bursledon Infant KS1 Yr 1 21 Little Red Hen 
 

10 Sept Bursledon Infant KS1 Yr 2 23 Little Red Hen 
 

 

9



 

 4

Feedback forms were all very positive. A Year 1 teacher from Bursledon Infant School said, “I 
don’t think there is anything that needs to be improved as the children really enjoyed their trip 
to the Windmill.” 
 
The Windmill is benefitting from the widening of the CEL Team to include Arts as well as 
Museums.  A funding bid has been submitted for a Clore Poetry & Literature Award to work 
with a writer in residence and 2 local schools next spring.  This term the local Arts 
Development Officer will be working with the CEL team on a project with one or more local 
schools to produce decorative banners for the barn, showcasing the Windmill’s history and 
use. This will be reported on next quarter. 
 
The Community Engagement & Learning Officer has undertaken a review of schools’ use of 
the Windmill over the last 3 years (see separate report), which includes an action plan to 
further promote the new improved offer. 

 
3.2     Community Engagement and Learning: 
 
 In line with the Service Plan aim of widening participation, a diverse programme of activities 

and events was offered over the 6 month period.  619 people took part in high quality 
community activities.   

 
Activity/Event Target Audience Date No. of 

participants
2 X Easter Bunny Hunt days Families 1 & 8 April 221 
2 X local community open days Local community 3 & 4 April 39 
Victorian Day (partnership with 
Bursledon Brickworks) 

Families 15 July 77 

Mill Summer Murders (clue trail 
with specimens & activities) 

Families 5 August 106 

Flour Power Workshop for 3rd 
Portchester Scouts 

Children -
Community groups 

14 August 9 

Great Bursledon Bake Off (pizza 
making) 

Families 19 August 95 

Harvest Crafts Day Families 23 Sept 52 
History Workshop for Waterlooville 
U3A group 

Adults – 
Community groups 

27 Sept 20 

 
 Sunday visitor figures are noticeably higher on the days when special activities are offered on 

top of the usual site tours. The highlight was the Bake Off day which utilised the new outdoor 
oven for the first time with the public. 

 
 The Assistant Community Engagement and Learning Officer is part of the project team for the 

planned restoration and re-launch and is inputting a range of innovative ideas for the future. 
In the meantime, more events are planned for the Autumn/Winter including the launch of the 
new interpretive film with a private view for local community group leaders, a half term family 
activity on Autumn Animals, and a Curious Christmas Circus! These will be reported on next 
quarter. 

 

10



 

 5

4.   Marketing and management  
 
Marketing  
20,000 copies of ‘What's On in Hampshire Museums and Archives’, covering the period July 
to September, were distributed in June, which included events at museums across 
Hampshire. Distribution covered TICs, local museums, libraries and visitor attractions 
throughout the county.  
20,000 copies of the new edition covering October to December was delivered in early 
September and is in the process of being distributed county-wide. 

Online marketing 

Events at Bursledon Windmill were promoted on a monthly basis via the Hampshire County 
Council cultural e-newsletter, Showcase. With new people signing up all the time, Showcase 
is now reaching over 30,000 subscribers. It regularly features both an exhibition and an object 
of the month as well as signposting recipients to events in the their local area. In addition, the 
monthly e-newsletter Museums Monthly is sent to over 12,000 subscribers who have asked to 
receive museums specific information.  

Social Media 

The facebook page and twitter feed set up by the exhibitions team at Chilcomb House to 
promote exhibitions and events at Museums Service sites is becoming well established. 
Facebook now has over 400 “likes” and twitter nearly 550 followers. The Windmill also has it’s 
own dedicated Facebook page, which while it is less busy than the Exhibitions page, provides 
a more local interface and the two are linked together. The Exhibitions Team Facebook page 
includes a review of the pizza making event on 19 August and a preview of the film premier 
event on 12 October. 

 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Bursledon Windmill – School Service Review, September 2012  
 
Introduction – Background and Context 
 
With the implementation of Hampshire County Council Arts and Museums 
Service’s Phase 1 and 2 Restructures from June 2011, the scope and range 
of the Community Engagement and Learning Team (CEL) has broadened out 
considerably. At the peak of Renaissance funding in 2009/10 these roles were 
targeted towards schools programmes, and benefitted from Renaissance 
funding to support delivery of school services.  During the subsequent 
transition years other priority audiences have been successfully targeted as 
well as schools, with the aim of delivering a more balanced programme for 
local communities.  The offer to schools has itself evolved over the last two 
years as our relationship with local schools has matured and resulted in a new 
emphasis on closer working partnerships and depth of engagement. 
 
This review aims to look at the use made of the Windmill by its local and other 
schools at the height of Renaissance funding (2009/10) and during the 
transition years, and to suggest an action plan to ensure that we continue to 
offer a valued service to recent visitors, re-engage any who have not visited 
recently, and increase visits from non-visiting schools.  There are great 
opportunities to be gained from Museums and Arts now working together and 
it is timely to open a new dialogue with schools as the new National 
Curriculum is developed over the next two years and as the Windmill 
restoration project gets underway.  
 
Section 1 – Summary of Schools’ Use of the Windmill (last three 
academic years) 
 
1.1  Number of School Sessions Run and Number of Participating Pupils 
 
9 led school sessions took place in 2009/10 for 236 children.  9 sessions took 
place in 2001/11 for 175 children. In the 2011/12 academic year (first year for 
the new CEL Team) 9 sessions have taken place again, for 264 children. 6 
sessions have already been booked for the Autumn Term so projections for 
2012/13 should exceed previous years. Children are also being regularly 
engaged through visits with community groups like Cubs and Brownies. 
     
           
           
           
           
           
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bursledon Windmill Pupil Numbers

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

Academic Years

P
up

il 
Nu

m
be

rs

Pupil Numbers

 

Agenda Item 4

13



 

 

 
1.2  Types of Session Delivered 
 
Up until the last academic year (2011/12), the schools offer was mainly 
planned and delivered by Windmill site staff, with the education team offering 
special projects as an additional service.  With the implementation of the 
Phase 1 & 2 Arts and Museums Service restructure, the CEL Team took over 
schools services at the Windmill and developed and trialled new school 
sessions over 2011/12 which are now being promoted for 2012/13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
           
            
The Minibeasts sessions in 2009/10 were a Renaissance project by the CEL 
team. The Curator sessions were a special project with one school in 2010/11. 

2009/10

General Visit
Minibeasts
Be a Curator
Little Red Hen
Grain Chain
Creaking Mill

2010/11

General Vis it
Minibeasts
Be a Curator
Little Red Hen
Grain Chain
Creaking Mill

2011/12

General V is it
Minibeasts
Be a Curator
Little Red Hen
Grain Chain
Creaking Mill

14



 

 

The ‘General Visits’ those years were ones booked in by Windmill site staff 
when the mill was open on weekdays.  In 2011/12 general visits stopped as 
the windmill has to be opened and staffed especially for school groups on 
week days, so all sessions can now be themed to the school’s requirements 
and led by the CEL team. 
 
1.3  Schools Using Bursledon Windmill in the last 3 academic years 
 
Bursledon Windmill aims to work with schools within Eastleigh Borough, 
nearby schools in bordering authorities, and schools from further afield.   
 
Of the 31 mainstream local authority primary schools in the borough, the 
Windmill has worked with 5 over the last 3 years (16%) and another school 
has booked 3 sessions for the Autumn Term (so now 19%). Of the 25 non-
visiting local schools, 17 have visited other HCCMAS museums including 
Eastleigh Museum.  8 out of the 31 schools are not using HCCMAS museum 
services at all but may be engaging with our Arts services (research not yet 
done).  1 of the 7 secondary schools in the borough has visited the Windmill. 
Wildern School has participated in two in-depth projects with the CEL Team, 
but using SEARCH at Gosport.  Hamble College contributed to the Inspire! 
Exhibition at Eastleigh Museum.  Lakeside Special School has not used our 
services in the last 3 years. 
 
Outside of Eastleigh Borough there are 5 nearby Southampton primary phase 
schools of which only one has visited the Windmill, and 2 nearby Fareham 
schools which have not visited. 
 
From further afield 3 Southampton primaries have visited, 1 independent 
school from Fareham,  1 Winchester primary, 1 Gosport primary, 1 Havant 
primary, 1 New Forest primary and an independent school from Andover. 
 
 
Section 2 –  Planned Campaign to Increase Schools’ Use of Bursledon 
Windmill 
 
In the current economic climate, and with changes to the National Curriculum 
approaching, the challenge is to maintain the visits of the schools that have 
been using the mill, re-engage ones who used to visit and have lapsed, and to 
attract visits from non-users. 
 
2.1 Actions for Autumn Term 2012 and the rest of the Academic Year 
 

• Promote the new curriculum based sessions to all primary schools 
within easy travelling distance, communicating the cross-curricular 
strengths and the geography and local history strands as well as the 
‘Flour Power’ and ‘Little Red Hen’ grain chain sessions. 

• Ensure web pages are current and are updated and use is made of 
teachers’ web pages and bulletin boards. 

• Concentrate initial action on the Primary Phase schools as our core 
audience, aiming to work with secondary schools on an individual  
project basis.   

15



 

 

• Explore and develop cross-service opportunities for schools by working 
in partnership with Arts colleagues (e.g. bid to Clore Duffield for funding 
for a writer in residence to work with schools in 2013), and develop 
seasonal themes such as Harvest Festival and the possibility of 
engaging the most local schools in the restoration project and re-launch 
in the future. 

 
2.2  Targets 
 
Targets will be set for 2013/14 as part of the service planning process. 
 
 

Janet Wildman, September 2012 

16



Eastleigh Museum JMC and Bursledon Windmill JMC 2012/13 Budget 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM BURSLEDON WINDMILL

Budget Actuals Proposed Budget Actuals Proposed
Q1 + Q2 Budget Q1 + Q2 Budget

EXPENDITURE 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14
£ £ £ £

Community Curator (33%) and Venue Management 10,669 5,335 10,669 10,669 5,335 10,669
Front of House Staff 0 4,326 0 9,500 4,750 9,500
Renaissance Volunteer Coordinator 0 0 0 0 5,509 0
Essential Maintenance and Museum Venue Costs* 20,600 5,162 20,600 5,000 3,604 5,000
Exhibitions 23,699 11,850 23,699 5,000 2,500 5,000
Collections 40,991 20,496 40,991 2,000 1,000 2,000
Learning & Community Engagement 11,492 5,746 11,492 22,983 11,492 22,983
Management & Marketing 5,525 2,763 5,525 5,525 2,763 5,525
Total Expenditure 112,976 55,676 112,976 60,677 36,951 60,677
Income 7,000 0 5,000 3,000 779 1,500
Net Expenditure 105,976 55,676 107,976 57,677 36,172 59,177

Total Eastleigh Museum 105,976 55,676 107,976
Total Bursledon Windmill 57,677 36,172 59,177
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 163,653 91,848 167,153

INCOME 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14
HCC Contribution 103,253 103,253 106,753
EBC Contribution - Eastleigh Museum 30,000 0 30,000
EBC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 27,728 0 27,728
BPC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 2,672 0 2,672
Total Income 163,653 103,253 167,153

A
genda Item

 517



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Re-development Project at Bursledon Windmill 
 
A Report to Bursledon Windmill JMC on 17 October 
 
Date Written: 06 October 2012          Author: Tim Kelly 
 
Summary 
 
This report updates members on progress of the project to re-develop the 
Windmill.  It asks for a decision from members to agree to the ongoing 
development of this project against an indicative timeline (Appendix 1) and to an 
indicative budget (Appendix 2).  
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The re-development project aims to conserve and repair the windmill through the 
replacement of the windshaft to enable the mill to operate its historic machinery 
and once again become the only working windmill in Hampshire. The new shaft 
will be made in oak to match the original shaft. 
 
The plan will also involve making the operational working of the windmill 
sustainable through further improvements to the infrastructure, the visitor 
facilities and the interpretation of the windmill, covering aspects of the social, 
technological and local history. The interpretation will also be extended beyond 
the windmill to explore the natural environment and local food production. 
 
Further aims are to get more people actively involved in the operational 
management of the windmill through the established community partnership and 
developing the volunteer team.  Increasing accessibility, broadening the visitor 
base through development of the Community Engagement and Learning offer, 
especially for adults, schools and families will complete the extended offer. 
 
 
2. Progress to Date 
 
In order to attract a Heritage grant from Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF), the project 
must address the following criteria: 
 

• help people to learn about their own and others’ heritage (learning); 
and either or both of the following: 

• conserve the UK’s diverse heritage for present and future generations to 
experience and enjoy (conservation); 

Agenda Item 6

19



 

 

• help more people, and a wider range of people, to take an active part in 
and make decisions about heritage (participation). 

 
A pre-application submission to HLF in June ‘12 produced the following feedback 
on the submitted idea. 
 
2.1 Conservation – Your application is based around the conservation and 
repair of the historic windmill.  Stating the historical significance of the windmill 
and the fact it is the last remaining of its kind in the area will make your 
application stronger.   
 
The capital works you are planning looks interesting.  The conservation work 
looks well explained and justified.  You must also demonstrate that the 
conservation works are an appropriate standard and show that you have 
consulted and have support of English Heritage and the council’s Conservation 
Officer.  I see you have attached a conservation statement, which is great.  But 
make sure you mention this in the application too.  Providing copies of the 
permissions required would also be useful.   
 
Justifying a new building will require you to justify strongly the need for this.  In a 
competitive funding environment, you will need to show how the new building is 
needed for the success of the project.  Is building a visitors centre vital for the 
success of the project or could the same facilities be incorporated into the 
existing building? What change in visitor experience and access will this new 
facility bring? You state that you have already had some funding in the past to 
create an AV display for the current visitors centre.  Making clear that this is a 
separate project is important as HLF can not fund continuation of existing 
projects.   
 
You need to be clear about who the building is currently owned by so we can be 
assured the arrangements meet our requirements.  More info can be found on 
our website on the link below.   
 
Page 6 of Your Heritage guidance – “Land and buildings - For projects which 
involve carrying out capital work to land or buildings, we normally expect you to 
own the freehold or have a lease with at least 10 years left to run at the date we 
award any grant. Otherwise, you will need to provide a letter from the owner, 
saying that you have the owner’s permission to carry out the work. The owner will 
also need to sign a letter that we will prepare, agreeing to keep to our standard 
terms of grant.” 
 
Meeting the sustainability and future requirements of a project like this is 
important.  If the works do happen then the building must be in use as the project 
proposes for at least 25 years.  Talking about building will be used and run in the 
future will strengthen your application.  Outlining your partnership agreement of 

20



 

 

the building would also be important.  Telling us if you have a management plan 
of ownership and maintenance would be useful for us to know.   
 
Stating the importance of why the project needs to happen now will strengthen 
your application.  What would happen the building if this project didn’t happen 
and why does it need to happen now?  You mention that 2014 is a significant 
birthday, explaining why this is would strengthen your application.  It would be 
good for us to know how this project fits into the wider planning and future for the 
site.   
 
2.2 Learning – Even though conservation seems to be the largest part of the 
project, as you know the learning aspect is vital for the project to gain funding.  
The range of learning opportunities you are offering for adults, schools and 
families looks good.  Will it be the volunteers who run this programme of events 
or will this be done by someone else?  Being clear about who will run these and 
where they will be held, how many events and when would be useful for us to 
know.   
 
For Your Heritage grants, we would usually expect all the learning and 
participation activities to be delivered as part of the project and detailed in the 
project plan.  Applying for funding to write an activity plan is not something which 
a Your Heritage award could pay for.  I think you may have got mixed up with a 
Heritage Grant which in round 1 you can apply for things like activity plans.  
Remember, the Your Heritage application is a one stage process so there is not 
an opportunity to test the potential of the classes you mention.  Thus 
development costs are  included in this type of grant.  The classes however 
seem to be a good idea and could be included in the application if you give more 
information.   
 
2.3 Participation – You mention that you hope the building will host community 
inspired events and become a community asset.  However, enforcing the point 
that the buildings main aim will be to remain for function of helping people learn 
about the heritage of the windmill and area is very important.   
 
Considering the voice of young people and how they can influence and shape 
the future of the mill sounds very interesting.  Outlining how you think this would 
be done, (i.e. through a regular forum or regular events for young people), would 
be interesting to know.  The more detail you can give on this the better.   
 
Using volunteers to help with the project and giving them training is a very 
positive aspect of the project.  Your ideas for the volunteers are well thought out 
and could form a strong team to help run the windmill’s outreach activities. A 
detailed breakdown of the types and length of the training would be needed and 
also the expenses that you would pay the volunteers should be included in the 
budget.  Being able to show that there are potentially people who would like to 

21



 

 

volunteer or showing how you would get new people interested would strengthen 
your application.   
 
Partnership with other organisations such as the Bursledon Brickworks Industrial 
Museum and the Arts & Museums Community Engagement Learn Team would 
be a positive thing.  However, details of this partnership and how it would work 
should be made clear.  Will the organisations help each other out financially or 
share events? 
 
Professional Support – The list of people to support the project is quite extensive.  
Will the £22k cover all of these or will some be paid in house by the council? 
 
Your inflation and contingency is currently large.  HLF usually advises that no 
more than 10% of the total project should be reversed for this.  If you can 
however strongly justify this then that is fine.  Having cost certainty would 
strengthen your application.   
 
2.4 Budget – Volunteer time is also down at £5k.  You would need to justify what 
the money is being used for and for how long it would cover the volunteers’ time.   
 
From what I can see, the amount you are requesting is almost being matched by 
another source.  Stating where you plan to get the rest of the money from would 
be useful and also which aspects of the project you would like HLF to fund.  If the 
ship funding is not yet secured, this would weaken your application.  Having a 
correspondent statement a commitment of financial support is the ideal situation 
to be in. I notice you say that there will be a fund raising campaign to support 
restoration works.  You will need to be explicit about which part of the part you 
think this would fund.   
 
 
3. Community Support / Raising Funds 
 
Bursledon Community Partnership met in September and considered the HLF 
feedback, considered the indicative budget and timeframe and discussed plans 
to raise funds for the project. 
 
A Community Support Open Day is planned for 22 November 2012 to generate 
wider interest in the project and to provide a springboard for further community 
support.  Donations are currently strong at the windmill (around £1,500 is 
predicted pre-Christmas in 12/13) and plans are being developed for a public 
fundraising strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 

22



 

 

Current ideas for wider community involvement include: 
 
• Extend the membership of the Community Partnership to include other 
community groups and / or representative of communities served locally . 
• Plan a public fundraising campaign to support the restoration works. 
• Use the Community partnership to develop these proposals, as part of the 
restoration campaign. 
• Encourage members of the Community Partnership to become Windmill 
Champions in their local community settings. 
• Develop the local history contribution to the windmill story in a flexible way by 
providing a display within the Barn. 
• Use the community partnership to promote volunteering at the windmill. 
• Plan for the 2014 Birthday celebrations with local communities. 
• Consider how the windmill can host community inspired and led events as it 
becomes more of a community asset. 
• Consider how the voice of young people can influence and shape the future 
operation of the windmill. 
• Consider membership of the group from the partners perspective, for example 
invite Bursledon Brickworks Industrial Museum onto the partnership group. 
 
Recommendation:  That members agree to the progression of the project 
against the indicative timeline and budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Indicative Timeline 
 
The project is currently working to the below indicative timeline.  Uncertainty 
about funding sources that require further investigation may have an impact on 
the exact timings, the plan is working to the key date of 2014 for re-launch. 
 
Indicative Date Action 
Sept-Dec 2012 Work up activity plan and interpretation plan 
Dec 2012 Communication and Funding Strategy agreed 
End Dec 2012 HLF/Other bids written and submitted 
End Mar 2013 Oak ordered inc. profiling and fitting requirements 
End Mar 2013 Bids results known 
Summer 2013 Capital works happens 
               2014 Re-launch 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 

 

Appendix 2 
 
Indicative Budget 
 
The figures in the below budget are based on costings produced prior to HLF 
feedback.  Members should note that these figures may change subject to that 
feedback and the need to meet HLF criteria. 
 
Income £ 
Capital repairs (HCC confirmed 12/13) 30,000
External redecorations (HCC confirmed 13/14) 3,000
P&R Access Budget (HCC confirmed 13/14) 10,000
Volunteer time (in kind) 5,000
Sub Total 1 48,000
HLF application 99,000
Ellis Campbell Charitable Foundation application 10,000
Doris Campbell Foundation application 3,000
Public donations 3,000
Landfill Tax 5,000
Sub Total 2 120,000
Sub Total 3 - Shortfall against £190,000 total 22,000
Total Income (1+2+3) 190,000
 
Expenditure 
Capital Works 
Conservation and Repair 68,000
Improved Visitor Facilities 25,000
Professional fees 22,000
Sub Total 4 115,000
Activity Costs 
Training, equipment and materials 32,000
Production of activity plan 8,000
Sub Total 5 40,000
Other Costs 
Project Management 5,000
Volunteer Time 5,000
Inflation and Contingency 25,000
Sub Total 6 35,000
Total Expenditure (4+5+6) 190,000
 
 
 
 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

A NEW TRUST FOR ARTS, MUSEUMS AND HERITAGE IN THE 
HAMPSHIRE-SOLENT AREA 

  
What might it look like for Arts and Museums Services in Eastleigh? 

 
Introduction 
 
The Connecting Communities to Excellence Arts and Museums Strategic 
Plan, 2012-15, issued by Hampshire County Council outlined the intention to 
explore the creation of a new charitable company limited by guarantee to 
deliver arts, museums and heritage services on behalf of Hampshire County 
Council, Southampton City Council and Winchester City Council. Detailed 
investigation of this proposition is being undertaken at present and this 
briefing note has been prepared to outline how the proposed New Trust might 
look for arts and museums services provided by Hampshire County Council in 
Eastleigh. 
 
All services currently delivered by Hampshire County Council Arts and 
Museums Service will be transferred to the New Trust. These include the 
delivery and development of services at Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon 
Windmill, as well as arts and museums engagement programmes taking place 
in the wider community. This transfer will not involve any change to current 
service levels for the public and it is anticipated that frontline staff teams will 
transfer under TUPE1 as per current organisational arrangements. 
 
The New Trust will evolve over a 5-year period to become a strong and 
resilient organisation for the future that will be in the best position to maintain 
and develop arts and museums services in Eastleigh in accordance with local 
need. There will be both short-term and longer-term benefits for the joint 
cultural ambitions of Eastleigh Borough Council, Hampshire County Council, 
Bursledon Parish Council and their wider strategic partners. 
 
This short briefing note summarises these specific service benefits and 
identifies the key issues for consideration regarding the current strategic 
partnerships between Hampshire County Council, Eastleigh Borough Council, 
Bursledon Parish Council and One Community. 
 
The New Trust 
 
The Appendix provides further detail on the proposed New Trust informed by 
the draft Business Case currently in preparation. This Business Case will be 
finalised during the autumn, and it is anticipated that Hampshire County 
Council, Southampton City Council and Winchester City Council will make a 
decision regarding whether to proceed in the December 2012/ January 2013 
period.  
 
If a decision is made to proceed, it is intended that the New Trust will be 
established during 2013/14 and that services would be transferred from 

                                                 
1 TUPE – Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) 

Agenda Item 7

27



 2

2014/15 onwards. During 2013/14, Hampshire County Council Arts and 
Museums services will continue to be delivered as per the current 
arrangements.  
 
Potential Benefits  
 
Realised increasingly during the next five years include: 
 
1. Promotion of venues and services via a dedicated website and e-marketing 

strategy designed specifically to meet the needs of a cultural attraction 
business 
 

2. Member of a wider family currently reaching a market of over 850,000 arts, 
museum and heritage lovers per annum that can be encouraged to visit 
other venues in the portfolio – including over 200,000 visitors to SeaCity 
Museum, Southampton Art Gallery and Tudor House in nearby 
Southampton 

 
3. Access to the wider fundraising and income generating opportunities and 

capacity of the New Trust, adding value to continued local authority funding 
in support of innovative community-centred activity programming targeted 
at specific social and economic outcomes and better enabling future capital 
development ambitions 

 
4. Being part of an ambitious and innovative forward programme which will 

develop opportunities to participate in annual festival-style Big Theme 
Events in addition to Local Spotlight programmes. The first of these Big 
Events is planned for 2014 with a theme of ‘World War I 100 Years’ 

 
5. Wider community engagement in the delivery of arts and museums 

services at all levels of activity and decision-making 
 
6. Being part of a flexible and enterprising Third Sector business enterprise 

that is fleet of foot and over time becomes resilient and better able to 
handle future public sector funding pressures before impacting on levels of 
service delivery 

 
7. Access to one of the best arts and museums professional teams in the 

country who work on a daily basis with Hampshire communities 
 
8. Better levels of collections and heritage stewardship and an improved 

ability to maintain Accreditation and National Archives standards 
  
Supporting Eastleigh Borough Council, Bursledon Parish Council and 
One Community Cultural Ambitions 
 
The New Trust would be a willing partner in helping Eastleigh Borough 
Council, Bursledon Parish Council and One Community achieve their wider 
cultural ambitions for example in the areas of: 
 

28



 3

• Providing strategic and fundraising support for capital development 
projects, including any future development of Eastleigh museum provision 

 
• Developing the economic benefits of the Arts in terms of the Creative 

Industries and Public Art 
 
• Preserving the character of the conservation area of old Bursledon and 

Bursledon Windmill, and improving visitor facilities and community 
engagement in the heritage of this historic site 

 
Key Issues 
 
1. Funding Partnership Arrangements:  

It is proposed that the arrangements for 2013/14, including funding 
contributions from Eastleigh Borough Council and Bursledon Parish 
Council, are as for 2012/13.  
 
For 2014/15 onwards, it is proposed that a 3-year funding agreement is 
confirmed between Eastleigh Borough Council, Bursledon Parish Council 
and Hampshire County Council with the New Trust delivering services on 
behalf of Hampshire County Council. Similar joint management 
arrangements would continue with the New Trust reporting to the 
partnership quarterly or six monthly to Hampshire County Council, 
Eastleigh Borough Council and Bursledon Parish Council via a monitoring 
meeting(s) considering both Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill.  

 
2. Setting Up a Sustainable Organisation:  

It is proposed that the new organisation is given the best opportunity to 
find its feet in the first few years of development, and Eastleigh Borough 
Council and Bursledon Parish Council are asked to commit to the current 
levels of Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum funding for the period 
2013/14 – 2016/17 in order to support this ambition. The New Trust will 
have the potential to attract new funding into current provision and support 
their development which will benefit the longer-term ambitions of Eastleigh 
Borough Council and Bursledon Parish Council. Hampshire County 
Council is not proposing to ask for an increase in the level of funding from 
Eastleigh Borough Council and Bursledon Parish Council, nor is it asking 
for a contribution towards the set up costs for the New Trust which would 
be picked up by Hampshire County Council, Southampton City Council 
and Winchester City Council. 
 
A review to consider the level of funding for the period 2017/18-2019/20 
would be undertaken during the year 2015/16 informed by future ambitions 
regarding the role of arts and museums in wider town centre and 
community planning. 

 
NB: This proposal relates to the long-term partnership arrangements 
between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council 
regarding delivery of arts and museums core services. The New Trust may 
continue to seek ongoing one-off funding and partnership support from 

29



 4

Eastleigh Borough Council, Bursledon Parish Council and Hampshire 
County Council for special cultural projects, adding value to these core 
services. 

 
3. Bursledon Windmill Lease Arrangements:  

Bursledon Windmill is owned by Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
(HBPT), is leased to Hampshire County Council and managed by a Joint 
Management Agreement between HCC and EBC. The current lease 
expires on 31 March 2015 and it may be appropriate to consider new 
lease arrangements between HBPT, HCC and the New Trust that reflect 
future occupancy arrangements. 

 
4. One Community Partnership at Eastleigh Museum:  

In May 2012, Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council 
entered into partnership with One Community to deliver front-of-house 
operations at Eastleigh Museum. The current agreement period is for the 
period 29 May 2012-29 November 2013. It is proposed that this agreement 
is renewed for the period up to 31st March 2017. 

 
Conclusion 
 
At this stage Hampshire County Council seeks: 
 
• General feedback regarding the New Trust proposal from Eastleigh 

Museum and Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committees, 
Eastleigh Borough Council, Bursledon Parish Council, Hampshire 
Buildings Preservation Trust and One Community 

• Comment on the proposals outlined in the Key Issues section, including 
agreement in principle as appropriate 

 
 
 
 

30



Appendix 

 

 
A NEW TRUST FOR ARTS, MUSEUMS AND HERITAGE IN THE 

HAMPSHIRE-SOLENT AREA 
 

General Briefing Update, 1st October 2012 
 

“Inspiring everyone to engage with the richness of Hampshire’s 
arts, creativity and heritage” 

 
The proposed new Trust1 would be Hampshire’s leading cultural organisation. 
Using the partners’2 vast expertise, enterprise and innovative approach, the 
mission will be to provide outstanding arts and heritage experiences, working 
closely with local communities, businesses, schools and organisations. 

 
A five-year strategy will be developed to deliver the following draft objectives: 

 
• To raise the national and international profile of Hampshire’s arts and 

heritage by promoting its collective national and international importance 
• To celebrate and promote excellence through Hampshire’s innovative 

flagship and community projects 
• To increase and diversify local and regional audiences by enhancing the 

physical and digital offer 
• To embed learning and community engagement across our services by 

creating an inclusive portfolio that supports social and economic objectives 
• To increase access to regional, national and international collections and 

installations 
• To develop creative new approaches to joint working through partnerships 
• To maximise trading opportunities for reinvestment by improving quality of 

offer 
• To attract external investment from public and private funding sources 
• To minimise the impact of reducing local authority subsidies 
 
Key themes of the emerging forward programme include: 
 
• An annual Big Theme Event delivering a festival-style programme of 

flagship and community exhibitions, performance, installations, events and 
digital opportunities 

• State of the art digital technology will drive dynamic marketing, 
resources, community engagement, ticketing and online retail 

• An annual Local Spotlight programme of community-centred exhibitions, 
performance and events delivered in partnership with local stakeholders 

• A programme of ongoing capital re-investment in priority flagship and 
community infrastructure, including a joint collections resource 

                                                 
1 The proposed ‘new Trust’ (to be named) would take the form of a charitable 
company limited by guarantee 
2 Founding partners: Hampshire County Council, Southampton City Council & 
Winchester City Council 

31



Appendix 

 

• New exciting opportunities will be created across schools, adult learning, 
community engagement, family events and creative industries 
 

What would the proposed new Trust look like? 
 
The new Trust will be a charitable company limited by guarantee 
independently governed by a group of trustees primarily from the local 
community and business world.  
 
The Business Case is currently in the final stages of development and it 
assumes that the new Trust will be accorded certain financial and operational 
conditions that will offer the best chance of success. In order to achieve this, 
proposals are being finalised in the following areas: 
 
• The property and collections in the ownership and stewardship of 

Hampshire County Council (HCC), Southampton City Council (SCC) and 
Winchester City Council (WCC) would be provided on long-term lease at 
peppercorn (or similar) rent (property)/ long-term loan (collections) for a 
period that provides a security of tenure appropriate to maximise 
opportunities for the new Trust to succeed in attracting external investment 
from trusts, foundations and other sources 

• HCC, SCC and WCC would create individual grant funding agreements 
with the new Trust for an appropriate period of time to ensure the business 
can find its feet in the early years 

• HCC, SCC and WCC would ensure appropriate funded arrangements are 
in place for providing central support services to the new Trust, including 
property maintenance, finance, HR and IT 

• It is anticipated that staff across the 3 services will transfer into the New 
Trust during late 2013.  

• The forward programme will prioritise realising the benefit of a charitable 
trust model by improving capacity to harness new sources of money for 
re-investment in services. These include activities that increase audiences, 
develop new potential income and grant-aid strands, maximise tax relief 
opportunities and improve the efficient use of resources 

 
The Business Case is being informed by learning from cultural mergers and 
trust organisations elsewhere in the UK, including for example the exit 
strategy arrangements we need to consider if one of the partners makes a 
future decision to withdraw from their funding agreement with the Trust. 
 
What happens next? 
 
HCC, SCC and WCC will make a decision regarding whether to proceed with 
the establishment of a new Trust in December 2012-January 2013. 
 
If a decision is made to proceed, the new Trust would be set up during the 
period February 2013-March 2014. The Business Case project is currently 
scoping the body of work to be undertaken in establishing the proposed new 
Trust and identifying associated costs. 

32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Schools Service Review
	5 Budgets 2012/13 and Initial Proposal for 2013/14
	6 Redevelopment Project at Bursledon Windmill
	7 A New Trust for Arts, Museums and Heritage in the Hampshire-Solent Area
	Appendix 1


